July 14, 2022

Docketing Division
The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio
189 East Broad Street
Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793

Re: The Dayton Power and Light Company, Case No. 22-0080-EL-ATA

Docketing Division:

The Dayton Power and Light Company d/b/a AES Ohio ("AES Ohio"), hereby submits a filing in compliance with the Entry issued by the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio ("PUCO") on July 13, 2022, in this proceeding. This compliance filing includes revised language in the General Terms and Conditions section, paragraphs 6 and 7(b) of AES Ohio Tariff (PUCO No. 2), which revised language removes the 12-month time limit for cost-sharing by subsequent pole attachers. AES Ohio proposes that the revised tariff here become effective upon acceptance by the PUCO. Exhibit A is a red-lined version of the AES Ohio Tariff (PUCO No. 2), which shows changes to the previously filed Amended Application on May 5, 2022. Attached as Exhibit B is the clean set of the AES Ohio Tariff (PUCO No. 2).

/s/

Respectfully submitted,

Randall V. Griffin

Randall V. Griffin (0080499)
Chief Regulatory Counsel
AES US Services, LLC
1065 Woodman Drive
Dayton, Ohio 45432
937-479-8983 (cell)
randall.griffin@aes.com
(willing to accept service by e-mail)



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I, Randall V Griffin, hereby certify that a copy of this filing was served on the persons stated below via electronic transmission, this 14th of July 2022.

ss:/ Randall V. Griffin

1065 Woodman Drive Dayton, Ohio 45432 Randall.griffin@aes.com 937-479-8983 (cell)

Ohio Bar No. 0080499

Glpetrucci@vorys.com Michael.twiss@puco.ohio.gov



P.U.C.O. No. 2

This Schedule cancels and supersedes all preceding Schedules.

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

POLE ATTACHMENT TARIFF

SCHEDULE OF RATES, CLASSIFICATIONS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

First Revised Sheet No. 1 Cancels Original Sheet No. 1 Page 1 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| A. | RE | NTAL CHARGE SCHEDULE | SHEET NUMBER |
|-------|-----|--|----------------------|
| | 1. | Availability | . 2 |
| | 2. | License Fee | |
| | 3. | Attachment Charges | |
| | 4. | Other Charges | |
| | 5. | General Terms and Conditions | |
| | 6. | PUCO Jurisdiction | 2 |
| B. | GE | NERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS | |
| | 1. | Availability | . 3 |
| | 2. | Application | |
| | 3. | Application Fee/Inspection Fee | |
| | 4. | Non-Compliance | |
| | 5. | Conditions of Attachment | |
| | 6. | Rearrangement | |
| | 7. | Replacement Facilities | |
| | 8. | Multiple Applicants | |
| | 9. | Owner's Right of Inspection | |
| | 10. | Attachment Audit | 3 |
| | | Unauthorized Attachment | |
| | | Payments | |
| | | Owner's Notification | |
| | | Abandonment by Attachor | |
| | 15. | Attachor's Equipment | |
| | 16. | Computation and Payment of Make Ready Costs | |
| | 17. | Third Party Claims | |
| | 18. | Release and Indemnification | |
| | | Public Liability Insurance | |
| | | Performance Bond | |
| | | Permits, Easements, and Rights-of-Way | |
| | | Work of One Party Performed by the Other | |
| | | Additional Termination Rights | |
| | | Force Majeure | |
| | | Delayed Payment Charge | |
| | | | |
| | | uant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26 Commission of Ohio. | , 2022 of the Public |
| Issue | d | Effective | |
| | | | |

Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer

First Revised Sheet No. 1 Cancels Original Sheet No. 1 Page 2 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | 26. Returned Check Charge27. General Terms and Conditions May be Amended | 3 |
|----|---|---|
| C. | EXHIBITS | |
| | 1. Exhibit A | 4 |
| | 2. Exhibit B | 5 |

Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

| Issued | | | Effective |
|--------|----|-----|-----------|
| | т. | 1.1 | |

First Revised Sheet No. 2 Cancels Original Sheet No. 2 Page 1 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

RENTAL CHARGE SCHEDULE

- 1. AVAILABILITY. (a) Except as provided below, this tariff is applicable to any "Attaching Entity" as defined in Section 4901:1-3-01(A) of the Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) (hereinafter called "Attachor") who attaches any facilities to poles and in rights-of-way owned by The Dayton Power and Light Company (hereinafter called "Owner" or "Company") or installs any facilities on, in, or along, ducts and conduits and in rights-of-way owned by Company, Attachors and other entities with attachments subject to this Tariff shall be required to execute the "POLES, DUCTS AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT" agreement ("Tariff Agreement"), substantially in the form set forth in an Exhibit to the General Terms and Conditions set forth in this Tariff. Pursuant to OAC §4901:1-3-01 "Pole attachment" means any attachment by an attaching entity to a pole, duct, conduit, or right-of-way owned or controlled by a public utility.
- (b) This Tariff shall not apply with respect to an entity who has an effective written contract allowing the installation of facilities on Owner's poles, ducts, and conduits on or after the time of the effective date of this Tariff either pursuant to a Joint Use Agreement, Joint Pole Agreement or other agreement irrespective of how captioned that provides for such installation under terms and conditions that are not intended by the parties thereto to be subject to the tariff ("Non-Tariff Agreement").
- **2. LICENSE FEE.** Attachor shall pay to Owner a one-time fee of \$100 for processing of the Tariff Agreement.
- **3.** <u>ATTACHMENT CHARGES</u>. The annual rental fee for attachments to poles shall be based upon the applicable formula for cable attachments as provided for in Section 4901:1-3-04 of the Ohio Administrative Code and as may be modified or amended by the PUCO. As of the effective date of this tariff sheet, the Annual Rental Fee per attachment to poles shall be:

\$8.05 (per foot; minimum one foot)

Unless otherwise indicated, the annual rental fee will be billed and be due and payable no later than the second calendar quarter of the following year.

| • | the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 lities Commission of Ohio. |
|--------|---|
| Issued | Effective Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 2 Cancels Original Sheet No. 2 Page 2 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF RENTAL CHARGE SCHEDULE

For calendar year 2018 and thereafter, the Annual Rental Fee shall be as set forth above.

The occupancy fee for attachments to conduit shall be based upon the applicable formula for cable attachments as provided for in Section 4901:1-3-04 of the Ohio Administrative Code and as may be modified or amended by the PUCO. As of the effective date of this tariff sheet, the occupancy fee for conduit shall be:

\$0.42 (per linear foot)

- **4. OTHER CHARGES.** (a) All charges for inspections, engineering and make ready work to permit Attachor's facilities to be attached to Owner's poles or placed in ducts and conduits and other work performed by Owner shall be determined in accordance with the regular and customary methods used by Owner in determining such costs.
- (b) These other charges may be updated by Owner periodically to reflect Owner's current costs.
- (c) To the extent applicable and as set forth in the General Terms and Conditions made a part hereof, Attachor shall also be obligated to pay any additional charges, including charges associated with unauthorized and non-compliant attachments as well as for delays in completion of any make ready required for other Attaching Entities.
- **5. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS.** All of the General Terms and Conditions of this Tariff are applicable to this Rental Charge Schedule and are hereby made a part hereof.
- **6. <u>PUCO JURISDICTION.</u>** This Rental Charge Schedule and the General Terms and Conditions are subject to Section 4901:1-3 of the Ohio Administrative Code and the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

| Filed pursuant to the Er of the Public Utilities (| y on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 mmission of Ohio. |
|--|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KR | TINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 1 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. AVAILABILITY. (a) Except as provided below, this tariff is applicable to any "Attaching Entity" as defined in Section 4901:1-3-01(A) of the Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) (hereinafter called "Attachor") who installs any facilities on poles, in ducts or conduits, and along rights-of-way owned by The Dayton Power and Light Company (hereinafter called "Owner" or "Company"). Attachors and/or entities with attachments subject to this Tariff shall be required to execute the "POLES, DUCTS AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT" agreement ("Tariff Agreement"), substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A, hereto. As set forth in paragraphs 17 and 21 below, the Attachor has the separate obligation to determine whether any additional authorizations are necessary to obtain access on, in, or across real property not owned by Owner in order to install facilities on, in, or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way. Pursuant to OAC §4901:1-3-01 "Pole attachment" means any attachment by an attaching entity to a pole, duct, conduit, or right-of-way owned or controlled by a public utility.
- (b) This Tariff shall not apply with respect to an entity who has an effective written contract allowing the installation of facilities on, in or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits or rights-of-way on or after the time of the effective date of this Tariff either pursuant to a Joint Use Agreement, Joint Pole Agreement or other agreement irrespective of how captioned that provides for such installation under terms and conditions that are not intended by the parties thereto to be subject to the Tariff ("Non-Tariff Agreement").
- 2. <u>APPLICATION</u>. (a) Attachor shall make written application using the Company's current notification processes and system for permission to install or change attachments or equipment (e.g. power supply or amplifier) on or in any poles, ducts, and/or conduits of Owner, specifying the location of each pole, duct and conduit in question, the character of its proposed attachments and the amount and location of space desired as prescribed by Section 4901:1-3 of the Ohio Administrative Code. Owner shall notify Attachor in writing, consistent with the time period described in Section 4901:1-3-03(B) of the Ohio Administrative Code, whether or not it is willing to permit the use of such poles, ducts, conduits, and/or rights-of-way and, if so, under what conditions. Owner shall have the sole right to determine the availability of such poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way for Attachor's use; shall permit attachment to poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way on a nondiscriminatory basis; and the Owner will not unreasonably refuse to grant permission except for reasons of lack of capacity, safety, reliability or engineering standards, consistent with the National Electric Safety Code and Owner's engineering and construction standards. If permission is granted, Attachor shall have the right to occupy the space allotted by Owner solely in accordance with the conditions specified in said permit, the terms of this Tariff, and the Tariff Agreement, if any, between Owner and Attachor, it being fully understood by Attachor that the Owner may at any time authorize other parties to also place attachments on, in, or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits and conduits and/or right-of-way. No attachment shall be allowed until the completion of survey, engineering and applicable make

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Reheari of the Public Utilities Commission | ing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 n of Ohio. |
|--|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KRISTINA L | UND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| KKISTINA L | ond, i resident and emer Executive officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 2 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ready work. An Attachor's failure to request and receive the Owner's permission as described herein will subject each pole on which the Attachor has placed an unauthorized attachment to an unauthorized attachment fee.

- (b) Company shall evaluate requests for attachments, accept or deny applications, provide notices, including notices with respect to "overlashing", prepare both "complex makeready" and "simple make-ready" estimates and perform make-ready work consistent with the requirements, including exceptions, limitations and conditions, set forth in the Ohio Administrative Code, Section 4901:1-3-03. The terms "complex make-ready," "overlashing" and "simple make-ready" have the same meaning as in Ohio Administrative Code, Section 4901:1-3-01.
- **3. APPLICATION FEE/INSPECTION FEE.** An application fee (also referred to as an "inspection fee") will be charged for each pole attachment request. This fee will cover the Owner's costs of field inspection, preparing of records and maps, transportation and other associated overhead costs required to evaluate requested attachments. The amount of such fee shall be the amount of Owner's experienced costs in making the initial and follow-up field inspections and in preparing such documents, including all associated costs as determined by the Owner. Applicable only with respect to notices of overlashed fiber optic and coaxial cable, an inspection fee will be charged equal to the just and reasonable costs actually incurred by Owner to inspect the pole prior to the installation of the proposed overlash.
- **4. NON-COMPLIANCE.** When set forth in notices that Owner may issue pursuant to this Tariff, the Tariff Agreement, O.A.C. 4901:1:-3-03, or otherwise, Attachor shall have the obligation to perform work within a specified period with respect to: making its attachments, removing, relocating, or otherwise modifying its attachments to facilitate an attachment by another Attaching Entity, or removing and reattaching its attachments to a replacement pole. Attachor shall respond to all such notices and shall complete all requested work within the time set forth in Owner's notice. If, after notice, Attachor does not comply with and is not contesting any obligation to perform work, Owner shall have the right to perform such work and charge Attachor for Owner's cost.
- **5. CONDITIONS OF ATTACHMENT.** All attachments are to be placed on, in, or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way as instructed by and in a manner satisfactory to Owner so as not to interfere with the present or any future use in the electric space which Owner may desire to make of said poles, duct, conduits, and rights-of-way or the wires attached thereto or therein. All attachments shall be installed and at all times maintained by Attachor so as to comply with the requirements of the Owner's engineering and construction standards, National Electrical Safety Code (NESC) and any other applicable regulations or codes promulgated by any state, local or other governmental authority having jurisdiction thereover, as such standards, codes or regulations may be amended from time to time. The Attachor shall effectively ground its facilities

| regulations may be amended fro | om time to time. The Attachor shall effectively ground its facilities |
|---|---|
| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rehe of the Public Utilities Commiss | earing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 sion of Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KRISTINA | LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 3 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

to Owner's multi-grounded neutral, per NESC requirement. Any guying required by reason of the attachments of Attachor either in Attachor's or Owner's judgment shall be installed, maintained and provided at the expense of Attachor and to the satisfaction of Owner and shall be in place prior to the installation of Attachor's messenger wire and/or cable. In no event shall Attachor use any of Owner's anchors without first securing Owner's approval.

- 6. **REARRANGEMENT.** If Attachor's desired attachments can be accommodated on existing poles, ducts, and conduits of Owner by rearranging the facilities of Owner and other Attachors thereon, Owner shall notify Attachor and all other existing Attaching Entities of the necessary rearrangements that need to be made. Owner's notice to the Attachor shall include the name and contact information of other existing Attaching Entities whose facilities need to be rearranged. The existing Attaching Entities, including any other utility subject to O.A.C. 4901:1-3, shall rearrange and/or modify their attachment on or before the completion date established by Owner in its notice issued pursuant to O.A.C. 4901:1-3-03. The requesting Attachor shall be obligated to pay Owner for any costs incurred by Owner for such rearrangements and shall be financially obligated with respect to any charges imposed by the other Attaching Entity's for their costs to rearrange, except that the requesting Attachor will pay proportional to its use with any existing Attaching Entity or Attaching Entities that adds to or modifies its attachment after receiving notice of the rearrangement. A subsequent Attaching Entity who attaches within 12 months after the rearranging shall share proportionately in the rearranging costs if the rearrangement made possible its attachment. The requesting Attachor shall not be obligated to pay Owner or existing Attachors for rearrangement costs incurred to rectify an existing condition or issue, which shall be charged instead to either: (a) the last attachor(s) or overlasher(s) who cause the condition or issue; or (b) if records are inadequate to determine who caused the condition or issue, then all attachor(s) and overlasher(s) and the public utility shall pay to rectify the existing condition proportional to their use. If any additional guying is required by reason of the attachments of the Attachor, then Attachor shall reimburse Owner for the total costs of such work. If guying is required in the communication zone, Attachor shall be responsible for installation at its own expense. Attachor shall have the responsibility to seek agreement with other Attaching Entities with respect to the financial obligations relating to any such rearrangements. Outside of providing the standard proposal notifications, Owner undertakes no obligation and shall not be responsible for coordinating the rearrangement of the existing Attaching Entities attachments.
- 7. REPLACEMENT FACILITIES. (a) In any case where Owner plans to install a new pole, duct, or conduit as a replacement of an existing pole, duct, or conduit, Owner shall notify all Attaching Entities with attachments on or in the existing pole, duct, or conduit of such plans. Attaching Entities have 15 days from such notification by Owner to indicate their intent to attach to or in the new pole, duct, or conduit and shall further indicate whether the existing specifications for their facilities remain the same or if there are changed requirements. A failure to provide a response shall be treated as if the Attaching Entity had indicated intent to attach to the new pole, duct, or conduit with no change in existing specifications.

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| Issued | Effective | | |
| | Issued by | | |
| | KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 4 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- (b) In any case where Owner installs a new pole as a replacement of an existing pole because of the necessity of providing adequate space or strength to accommodate the attachments of Attachor, either at the request of Attachor or to comply with the above standards, codes and regulations, the Attachor shall pay Owner's make-ready cost of this replacement, except that the requesting Attachor will pay proportional to its use with any existing Attaching Entity or Attaching Entities that adds to or modifies its attachment after receiving notice of the pole replacement. A subsequent Attaching Entity who attaches within 12 months after the pole replacement shall share proportionately in the replacement costs if the replacement made possible its attachment. Such cost shall be the total estimated cost of the new pole, including material, labor, and applicable overheads, plus the cost of transferring existing electric facilities to the new pole, plus the cost of removal of the existing pole and any other incremental costs required to provide for the attachments including any applicable taxes and fees the Owner may be required to pay because of this change in plant, minus salvage value of any facilities removed. The requesting Attachor shall not be obligated to pay Owner or existing Attachors for pole replacement costs incurred to rectify an existing condition or issue, which shall be charged instead to either: (a) the last attachor(s) or overlasher(s) who cause the condition or issue; or (b) if records are inadequate to determine who caused the condition or issue, then all attachor(s) and overlasher(s) and the public utility shall pay to rectify the existing condition proportional to their use.
- (c) Attachor shall also pay to the Owner and shall be financially responsible to any existing Attaching Entities for the cost of removing all existing attachments from the existing pole and re-establishing the same or like attachments on the newly installed pole. Owner's notice to the Attachor shall include the name and contact information of other existing Attaching Entities whose facilities need to be transferred.
- (d) Where Owner is initiating the installation of a new pole, either as a replacement of an existing pole or as an initial installation and a new or modified attachment is proposed by an Attachor which, in the opinion of Owner, makes it necessary to install a new pole taller or stronger than would be needed but for the Attachor's new or modified attachments, the added total costs incurred by Owner due to such extra height and/or strength shall be paid by Attachor. Such added total costs shall be the difference between the total cost of installing the new pole required to accommodate Attachor's new or modified attachment and the current total cost that would have been incurred in the absence of Attachor's new or modified attachment.
- (e) Any new pole installed pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall be the property of Owner regardless of any payments by Attachor towards its cost, and Attachor shall acquire no right of ownership in, or title to, such pole (or with respect to any other pole subject to this Tariff).

| • | Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 ilities Commission of Ohio. |
|--------|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| | KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 5 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- (f) Attachor shall transfer its facilities by the date set for completion by Owner in Owner's notice to Attachor that the Owner has replaced a pole on which Attachor has attachments so the Owner may remove the old pole. Should the Attachor fail to transfer the facilities as of such completion date, the Attachor shall be subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4.
- (g) The provisions of 7(b) through 7(f) shall be applied with respect to replacement ducts and conduits with appropriate modifications to reflect the differences in work and costs to replace ducts and conduits relative to replacement poles.
- **8.** MULTIPLE APPLICANTS. When Owner receives applications from more than one applicant for attachment space on or in any particular pole, duct or conduit and because of such multi-attachments either the pole, duct or conduit must be replaced or the facilities thereon must be rearranged to provide additional space for said attachments, Owner will prorate the additional total costs resulting from the pole, duct or conduit replacement or rearrangement in a fair and reasonable way to the extent practicable between Attachor and the other attachment applicant(s). Such prorated total costs shall include the common engineering, material and other expenses which result to Owner from the multiple attachments. Owner's proration of total costs shall be determinative as to all parties subject to Attaching Entities' rights to dispute a make ready determination.
- 9. <u>OWNER'S RIGHT OF INSPECTION</u>. Owner reserves the right to inspect each new installation of Attachor on its poles, ducts and conduits. Owner reserves the right to make periodic inspections, as conditions may warrant, and Attachor shall reimburse Owner for the total costs of one post-installation inspection. Owner's right to make such inspections and any inspection made pursuant to such right shall not relieve Attachor of any other responsibility, obligation or liability assumed under this Tariff or under law.
- **10. ATTACHMENT AUDIT.** Owner shall provide Attachor with no less than 180 days advance written notice of its intention to conduct an attachment inventory audit and shall provide to Attachor a reasonable opportunity to participate in the planning and implementation of the inventory audit.
- 11. <u>UNAUTHORIZED ATTACHMENT</u>. If the Owner discovers any equipment or facilities of an Attachor on its poles, ducts and/or conduits which have not been properly applied for or paid for under the terms set forth herein or pursuant to some other authorization, then Owner may take any or all of the following actions as applicable:

| any or an or the rono wing actions as approacte. | | |
|--|--|--|
| • | Assess an unauthorized attachment fee of \$500 per pole for Attachors without a contract (i.e., when there is no pole attachment agreement between the parties); | |
| | oursuant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | |
| Issued | | |
| | Issued by | |
| | KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | |
| | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 6 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Assess an unauthorized attachment fee of five times the current annual rental fee per pole
if: 1) the Attachor has not submitted an Application, 2) the Attachor has not received an
authorization to attach and the violation is self-reported or discovered through a joint
inspection, or 3) the unauthorized attachment is identified by Owner or Owner's
contractor during daily job responsibilities or during a pole examination for a new
attachment request.

Owner shall provide specific notice of violation (including pole number and location) before seeking relief against an Attachor ("Notice of Unauthorized Attachment").

There is a mutual obligation of Owner and Attachors to correct immediately violations that pose imminent danger to life or property. If a party corrects another party's violation, the party responsible for the violation must reimburse the correcting party for the actual cost of corrections.

12.PAYMENTS. All payments due from Attachor shall be invoiced by Owner. Payment shall be made by Attachor within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice, except for payments for make ready work. Payment for a make ready work estimate shall be made at any time, unless the Owner withdraws the estimate. The Attachor may submit a written dispute or request for additional information regarding the scope of make-ready work or allocation of costs of the mark-ready work. Owner may, but is not required to, withdraw an outstanding estimate of charges to perform make-ready work beginning 14 days after the estimate is presented.

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Ro of the Public Utilities Comm | chearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 mission of Ohio. |
|--|---|
| Issued | Effective |
| KRISTII | Issued by NA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| KKISTI | NA LOND, I resident and emer Executive officer |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 6 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 13. OWNER'S NOTIFICATION. (a) Whenever Owner notifies Attachor any time that the attachments of Attachor interfere with the maintenance and operation of equipment of Owner or other Attaching Entities, create a safety violation or constitute a hazard to the service rendered by Owner or other Attaching Entities, or fail to comply with standards, codes or regulations hereinafter mentioned, Attachor shall within ten (10) days after the date of such notice remove, rearrange or change its attachments as directed by Owner at Attachor's expense. Failure to comply shall result in Attachor being subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4. In any emergency as deemed by Owner, Owner reserves the right to remove and/or relocate the attachments and/or facilities of Attachor at any time at Attachor's expense without notice and no liability therefore shall be incurred by Owner because of such action, and Attachor shall be liable to Owner for Owner's total costs in removing and/or relocating Attachor's attachments and/or facilities and Attachor shall be deemed to have indemnified and held Owner harmless for such action pursuant to Section 18. Whenever Owner notifies Attachor that the attachments of Attachor interfere with routine maintenance, Attachor shall within thirty (30) days after the date of such notice remove, rearrange or change its attachments as directed by Owner.
- (b) Owner reserves the right, without liability to Attachor or Attachor's customers, on (sixty) 60 day notice to Attachor to discontinue the use of, remove or change the location of any or all of its poles or attachments regardless of any occupancy of Owner's poles, ducts, and conduits by Attachor and Attachor shall, at its sole cost and within sixty (60) days after written notice by Owner, make such changes in, removal or transfer of its attachments as shall be required by such action of Owner. Failure to comply shall result in Attachor being subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4.
- 14. ABANDONMENT BY ATTACHOR. Attachor may at any time abandon the use of Owner's pole, duct, conduit, or right-of-way hereunder by giving written notice thereof to Owner and then removing therefrom all of its attachments. Attachor shall remove all of its attachments within 60 days after providing such notice to Owner. Failure to comply shall result in Attachor being subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4.
- 15. ATTACHOR'S EQUIPMENT. If Attachor should desire to mount equipment outside of the communication zone (power supplies, amplifiers, etc.) on Owner's poles a written application shall be submitted for permission to install/mount equipment on Owner's Poles. The Annual Rental fee for authorized equipment installation that is in compliance with the authorization shall be the Annual Rental Fee. Any electric power service provided by Owner for power supplies, amplifiers or other equipment of Attachor shall be paid for by Attachor as per Owner's applicable electric tariff.

| amplifiers or other equipment of Attachor shall be paid for by Attachor as per Owner's applicable electric tariff. | | |
|--|--|--|
| siecule tailii. | | |
| | | |
| Filed pursuant to Entry on I of the Public Utilities Com | Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 mission of Ohio. | |
| Issued | Effective | |
| | Issued by | |
| KRIST | INA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | |
| | | |
| | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 7 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

16. COMPUTATION AND PAYMENT OF MAKE READY COSTS. In computing the amounts becoming due pursuant to these General Terms and Conditions for make ready costs (other than the Annual Rental Fee), the fees and charges shall be the actual costs incurred by the Company to make the facilities ready for Attachor's proposed attachment. Make ready costs pursuant to these General Terms and Conditions shall include not only all labor and material costs and expenses, but also overheads and indirect costs required including any applicable taxes, permit fees, and other charges the Owner is required to incur or pay to make the facilities ready for Attachor's proposed attachments.

<u>17. THIRD PARTY CLAIMS.</u> In granting Attachor the right to attach to Owner's poles, ducts, and conduits or other facilities as provided herein, Owner makes no representation as to what rights may exist in others regarding the land on which Owner's poles and other facilities are located. Attachor shall have full responsibility for meeting the title claims or requirements of any other parties relating to the placement of its facilities upon, under, or above said land, and Attachor shall hold harmless Owner against any such claims.

18. RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION. (a) As further consideration to Owner for its granting Attachor permission to use Owner's facilities as herein provided, Attachor hereby releases Owner from any and all liability for loss of or damage to its attachments subject to this Tariff, and for any interruption to or failure of any service rendered by Attachor in which such attachments are used. Under no circumstance, shall Owner be responsible to Attachor, either directly or through claims raised against Attachor by Attachor's employees, contractors, or customers, for incidental, indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of profits or revenues, interruption of customer service or interference with business operations.

(b) Attachor further shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Owner from and against any and all actions or causes of action, claims, demands, liabilities, loss, damage or expense of whatsoever kind and nature ("Claims"), including Claims of Attachor's employees, contractors, and customers whether raised directly against Owner or raised indirectly against Owner through Attachor, and including incidental, indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of profits or revenues, interruption of customer service or interference with business operations, and further including attorneys' fees arising from such action, by reason of bodily injury, including death, to any person or persons, or by reason of damage to or destruction of any property, including the loss of use thereof, including property of Owner,

| destruction of any property, including the loss of use thereof, including property of Owner, | | | |
|--|--|--|--|
| | | | |
| Filed pursuant to Entry | on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 | | |
| of the Public Utilities | Commission of Ohio. | | |
| Issued | Effective | | |
| | Issued by | | |
| KF | RISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 8 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

arising out of or in any manner connected with the facilities of Attachor to be installed hereunder, including any costs which Owner may sustain or incur in the investigation, settlement or litigation of any such claims, including any legal action instituted to enforce the obligation of this agreement of indemnity, whether or not due in whole or in part to any act, omission, or negligence of Owner, or any of its representatives or employees, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 2305.31 of the Revised Code of Ohio (O.R.C.), where applicable, provided, further, however, that nothing herein shall require indemnification as to any claims against Owner arising under the Ohio Worker's Compensation Law with respect to Owner's employees and contractors. This indemnity obligation does apply, however, to claims against Owner by Attachor's employees, contractors and customers. To the extent that Attachor might otherwise be immune from indemnifying Owner under the applicable workers compensation law, Attachor hereby expressly waives this immunity. For claims arising under Ohio law, this waiver applies to Section 35, Article II of the Ohio Constitution and O.R.C. Section 4123.74. Moreover, Attachor expressly waives any subrogation rights, including those provide under O.R.C. Section 4123.93, it may have arising from any claim brought by its employees against Owner for injuries allegedly sustained while involved in pole attachment activities.

(c) Approval of the above tariff language by the PUCO does not constitute a determination by the Commission that the limitation of liability imposed by the Company should be upheld in a court of law. Approval by the Commission merely recognizes that since it is a court's responsibility to adjudicate negligence and consequent damage claims, it is also the court's responsibility to determine the validity of the exculpatory clause.

19. PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE. Attachor shall obtain and maintain at all times during the joint use of poles hereunder policies of insurance as follows:

- (a) Public Liability Insurance for itself in an amount not less than \$1,000,000.00 for any one person and, subject to the same limit for any one person, in an amount not less than \$1,000,000.00 for any one occurrence.
- (b) Property Damage Liability Insurance for itself in an amount not less than \$1,000,000.00.
- (c) Contractual Liability Insurance with limits as provided in (a) and (b) above to

| | cover the liability assumed by Attachor under the agreement of indemnity herein above set forth. | | |
|---|---|--|--|
| Attachor shall furnish to Owner a certificate, from an insurance carrier acceptable to Owner, stating that policies of insurance have been issued by it to Attachor providing for the insurance | | | |
| | uant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 blic Utilities Commission of Ohio. | | |
| Issued | Effective | | |
| | Issued by | | |
| KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | | |
| | | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 9 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

listed above and stating that such policies are in force. Such certificate shall state that the insurance carrier will endeavor to give Owner at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice of any cancellation of or material change in such policies. The certificate shall also quote in full the agreement of indemnity set forth above as evidence of the type of contractual liability coverage furnished. If such certificate recites that it is subject to any exceptions contained in the policy or policies of insurance, such exceptions shall be stated in full in said certificate. Owner may, in its discretion, require that before the Attachor starts work, Attachor must obtain policies of insurance which are not subject to any exceptions which Owner finds objectionable.

20. PERFORMANCE BOND. Attachor shall furnish a performance bond in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) or lesser or greater amount as Owner from time to time may require to guarantee the performance of the obligations assumed by Attachor under the terms of this Tariff not otherwise covered by the insurance required by Section 19. Such bond shall be identical in terms to the form of bond marked Exhibit B, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

21 PERMITS. EASEMENTS. AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY. Attachor, at its expense, shall be solely responsible for determining the extent to which it is necessary to secure and shall secure any additional easement, right-of-way, franchise, other right, license or permit from any governmental body, authority or any other landowner, entity, or person that may be required for the construction, maintenance or continued siting of Attachor's attachments and related equipment and facilities. Owner does not provide or guarantee that Attachor will be able to obtain any necessary easements, right-of-way or franchises, other right, license or permit for the construction and maintenance of such attachments. Attachor hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any and all claims, including the expenses incurred by the Owner to defend itself against such claims, resulting from or arising out of the failure of Attachor to secure any necessary easement, right-of-way, franchise, other right, license or permit for the construction, maintenance or continued sitting of such attachment on the Owner's pole or along Owner's pole line or occupancy in the Owner's duct or conduit.

22. WORK OF ONE PARTY PERFORMED BY THE OTHER. In case one party hereto is obligated hereunder to perform certain work at its own expense and it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto that it is desirable for the other party to do said work, then said other party shall promptly do the work at the sole expense of the party originally obligated to perform the same and at a price agreed to by the parties at the time.

23 ADDITIONAL TERMINATION RIGHTS. If Attachor fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Tariff or defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Tariff and fails to correct such default or non-compliance within 60 days of Owner's notification, which may be in writing or via the electronic system used by Owner to communicate with Attachors, Owner

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | o. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 | |
|---|--|--|
| Issued | Effective | |
| Issued by | | |
| KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | |

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

MacGregor Park 1065

Woodman Drive

Dayton, Ohio 45432

Page 10 of

may, at its option, forthwith remove Attachor's facility from Owner's pole, duct and conduit and no liability shall be incurred by Owner because of such action and Attachor shall indemnify and hold

may, at its option, forthwith remove Attachor's facility from Owner's pole, duct and conduit and no liability shall be incurred by Owner because of such action and Attachor shall indemnify and hold Owner harmless for such action pursuant to Section 18. In addition, Attachor shall be liable to Owner for Owner's total costs in removing Attachor's attachments and/or facilities.

24. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Owner nor Attachor shall be deemed to be in breach of this Tariff by reason of failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder if, while and to the extent that such failure is due to strikes, boycotts, labor disputes, embargoes, shortages of materials, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of governmental authority, weather conditions, floods, riots, rebellion, sabotage, or any other circumstances for which it is not responsible and which are not reasonably within its control.

25. DELAYED PAYMENT CHARGE. Payment of the total amount due must be received by the Company or an authorized agent by the due date shown on the bill. If Attachor does not pay the total amount due to the Company by the due date shown, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of the total unpaid balance shall also become due and payable.

26. RETURNED CHECK CHARGE. A charge of the actual banking fee amount for returned check shall be added to the Attachor's account each time a check is returned by the financial institution.

27. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS MAY BE AMENDED. The Company reserves to itself the right with the approval of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, to modify, alter, amend, or add new provisions into these General Terms and Conditions as experience and conditions may suggest, or as it deems necessary in the conduct of its business.

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rel of the Public Utilities Comm | hearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 ission of Ohio. | |
|---|---|--|
| Issued | Effective | |
| | Issued by | |
| KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 1 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

POLES, DUCTS AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT

| THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into thisday ofby and between together with its affiliates and subsidiaries, | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| (Hereinafter referred to as "ATTACHOR") and THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY, an Ohio Corporation, 1065 Woodman Drive, Dayton, Ohio 45432, (hereinafter referred to as "OWNER"); and, | | | | |
| WHEREAS Attachor desires to make attachments on or in Owner's poles, ducts and conduits; and | | | | |
| WHEREAS, Owner is willing to permit, to the extent it may lawfully do so, the use of its poles, ducts and conduits by Attachor, where, in Owner's judgment, such use will not interfere with its own service requirements, including considerations of economy and safety; | | | | |
| NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: | | | | |
| 1. OWNER'S POLE ATTACHMENT TARIFF: The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions in the Owner's Pole Attachment Tariff, PUCO No. 2 (hereinafter referred to as "Owner's Tariff") on file with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (hereinafter referred to as "Commission"), which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereto. | | | | |
| 2. <u>APPLICATION PROCESS AND NOTICES:</u> Owner currently uses a web-based electronic notice and application process known as Spacially-enabled Permitting and Notification System "SPANS". Attachor agrees to utilize SPANS to support and manage all collaborative communication associated with joint use and attachment activity on Owner's poles. Owner reserves the right to replace or modify the SPANS system at any time in which case, Attachor's obligations hereunder shall be with respect to the modified or replacement system. | | | | |
| 3. PERMIT FROM OWNER: Before making any attachment to any of Owner's poles or making use of any duct or conduit used by Owner, or making modifications or additions to an existing attachment or use, Attachor shall make written application for permission to install attachments on any pole of Owner or make use of any duct or conduit of Owner, subject to the terms and conditions of the Owner's Pole Attachment Tariff, General Terms and Conditions, PUCO No. 2, Original Sheet No. 3. 15 days' notice must be given to the Owner prior to the planned overlashing of any equipment or facility. Overlashing of any equipment or facility other than fiber optic or coaxial cable must be specifically approved prior to commencing any construction activities. | | | | |
| Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | | | | |
| Issued Effective | | | | |

Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 2 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

- 4. **FEE and CHARGES:** Attachor shall pay all fees, rental charges, or other amounts for which payments are required as set forth in Owner's Tariff.
- 5. <u>DUCTS and CONDUIT CHARGES:</u> Prior to any use of Owner's ducts or conduits, the parties hereto shall execute Attachment 1, which shall specify rates, terms and Conditions, including any Special Conditions for such use on a project by project basis
- 6. **TERM:** This Agreement shall continue in effect from the date this Agreement is executed until terminated by either party upon written notice to the other party at least ninety (90) days in advance of the desired termination date. Upon receipt of such notice from Owner, or upon the giving of such notice, Attachor shall proceed to cause its attachments to be removed from Owner's poles without undue delay and shall complete such removal prior to the specified termination date.
- 7. **SEVERABILITY:** If any provision of this Agreement or of Owner's Tariff incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, is held to be unenforceable or invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby.
- 8. <u>SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:</u> This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their respective successors and/or assigns, but Attachor shall not transfer or assign any of the rights hereby granted without written consent of Owner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, consent shall not be required for (a) an assignment by either Party to a successor in interest resulting from an organizational restructuring, corporate conversion, consolidation, merger or other change of control of the assigning Party; or (b) an assignment by either Party to a person, corporation or other entity acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of such Party; or (c) an assignment by either Party to an entity directly or indirectly owning or controlling, owned or controlled by, or under common ownership or control with such Party (an "Affiliate"), in each case under (a), (b), and (c), however, notice shall be given of such assignment within thirty (30) days after the effective date of such assignment.

| Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Issued | Effective Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 3 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first above written.

| | OWNER: |
|---|--|
| | THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | ATTACHOD. |
| | ATTACHOR: |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Filed nursuant to the Entry on Rehearin | g in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 |
| of the Public Utilities Commission of C | Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective |
| KRISTINA LUND | Issued by , President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 4 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

ATTACHMENT 1

RATES, TERMS and SPECIAL CONDITIONS WITH RESPECT TO USE OF DUCTS AND CONDUITS

| [To | [To be separately executed project-by-project] | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|
| | OWNER: | | | |
| | THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY ——————————————————————————————————— | | | |
| | ATTACHOR: | | | |
| | | | | |
| Filed pursuant to the Entry on of the Public Utilities Commi | Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 ssion of Ohio. | | | |
| Issued | Effective | | | |
| | Issued by | | | |
| KRISTIN | A LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 5 Cancels Original Sheet No. 5 Page 1 of 1

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT B

BOND OF PERFORMANCE

| KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESEN | T, That we , as | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|
| Principal, and, of | _a corporation duly organized under the laws | | | |
| of the State of, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto THE DAYTON POWER | | | | |
| AND LIGHT COMPANY (hereinafter called the | Obligee), in the sum of, for | | | |
| the payment of which sum well and truly to be ma | | | | |
| bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators | s, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, | | | |
| firmly by these presents, | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Sealed with our seals, signed and dated thi | isday of, 20 . | | | |
| THE CONDITION of the above obligation | n is such that the said Principal has entered into | | | |
| a contract with said Obligee dated, for the joint use of poles and trenches, in | | | | |
| accordance with the terms and conditions of said c | contract, which is hereby referred to and made a | | | |
| part hereof as it is fully set forth herein; | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | Principal shall well and truly keep, do and | | | |
| perform each and every, all and singular, the matter | | | | |
| specified in the manner in said contract specified, | | | | |
| the above named Obligee, all loss and damage whi | | | | |
| failure or default on the part of said Principal so to | do, then this obligation shall be null and void, | | | |
| otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. | | | | |
| This obligation may be canceled by the Su (90) days from the receipt by the Obligee of certificancellation. | arety, such cancellation to be effective ninety ed or registered mail notice of such | | | |
| • | | | | |
| Attest: | (D: : 1) | | | |
| | (Principal) | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| (Surety) | · | | | |
| (Surety) | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case N of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 | | | |
| Issued | Effective | | | |
| Issued | Effective | | | |
| Issued | | | | |
| KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | | | |



P.U.C.O. No. 2

This Schedule cancels and supersedes all preceding Schedules.

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

POLE ATTACHMENT TARIFF

SCHEDULE OF RATES, CLASSIFICATIONS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

First Revised Sheet No. 1 Cancels Original Sheet No. 1 Page 1 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| A. | REI | NTAL CHARGE SCHEDULE | SHEET NUMBER |
|-------|-----|--|----------------------|
| | 1. | Availability | . 2 |
| | 2. | License Fee | |
| | 3. | Attachment Charges | 2 |
| | 4. | Other Charges | |
| | 5. | General Terms and Conditions | 2 |
| | 6. | PUCO Jurisdiction | |
| B. | GE | NERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS | |
| | 1. | Availability | . 3 |
| | 2. | Application | . 3 |
| | 3. | Application Fee/Inspection Fee | |
| | 4. | Non-Compliance | . 3 |
| | 5. | Conditions of Attachment | . 3 |
| | 6. | Rearrangement | . 3 |
| | 7. | Replacement Facilities | 3 |
| | 8. | Multiple Applicants | |
| | 9. | Owner's Right of Inspection | . 3 |
| | 10. | Attachment Audit | 3 |
| | 11. | Unauthorized Attachment | 3 |
| | 12. | Payments | . 3 |
| | | Owner's Notification | |
| | 14. | Abandonment by Attachor | 3 |
| | | Attachor's Equipment | |
| | | Computation and Payment of Make Ready Costs | |
| | 17. | | |
| | | Release and Indemnification | |
| | | Public Liability Insurance | |
| | | Performance Bond | |
| | | Permits, Easements, and Rights-of-Way | |
| | | Work of One Party Performed by the Other | |
| | | Additional Termination Rights | |
| | | Force Majeure | |
| | | Delayed Payment Charge | 3 |
| | | | |
| | | uant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26 Commission of Ohio. | , 2022 of the Public |
| Issue | d_ | Effective | |
| | | Issued by | |

Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer

First Revised Sheet No. 1 Cancels Original Sheet No. 1 Page 2 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | 26. Returned Check Charge27. General Terms and Conditions May be Amended | 3 |
|----|---|---|
| C. | EXHIBITS | |
| | 1. Exhibit A | 4 |
| | 2. Exhibit B | 5 |

Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

| Issued | | | Effective |
|--------|----|-----|-----------|
| | т. | 1.1 | |

First Revised Sheet No. 2 Cancels Original Sheet No. 2 Page 1 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

RENTAL CHARGE SCHEDULE

- 1. AVAILABILITY. (a) Except as provided below, this tariff is applicable to any "Attaching Entity" as defined in Section 4901:1-3-01(A) of the Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) (hereinafter called "Attachor") who attaches any facilities to poles and in rights-of-way owned by The Dayton Power and Light Company (hereinafter called "Owner" or "Company") or installs any facilities on, in, or along, ducts and conduits and in rights-of-way owned by Company, Attachors and other entities with attachments subject to this Tariff shall be required to execute the "POLES, DUCTS AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT" agreement ("Tariff Agreement"), substantially in the form set forth in an Exhibit to the General Terms and Conditions set forth in this Tariff. Pursuant to OAC §4901:1-3-01 "Pole attachment" means any attachment by an attaching entity to a pole, duct, conduit, or right-of-way owned or controlled by a public utility.
- (b) This Tariff shall not apply with respect to an entity who has an effective written contract allowing the installation of facilities on Owner's poles, ducts, and conduits on or after the time of the effective date of this Tariff either pursuant to a Joint Use Agreement, Joint Pole Agreement or other agreement irrespective of how captioned that provides for such installation under terms and conditions that are not intended by the parties thereto to be subject to the tariff ("Non-Tariff Agreement").
- **2. LICENSE FEE.** Attachor shall pay to Owner a one-time fee of \$100 for processing of the Tariff Agreement.
- **3.** <u>ATTACHMENT CHARGES</u>. The annual rental fee for attachments to poles shall be based upon the applicable formula for cable attachments as provided for in Section 4901:1-3-04 of the Ohio Administrative Code and as may be modified or amended by the PUCO. As of the effective date of this tariff sheet, the Annual Rental Fee per attachment to poles shall be:

\$8.05 (per foot; minimum one foot)

Unless otherwise indicated, the annual rental fee will be billed and be due and payable no later than the second calendar quarter of the following year.

| • | the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 lities Commission of Ohio. |
|--------|---|
| Issued | Effective Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 2 Cancels Original Sheet No. 2 Page 2 of 2

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF RENTAL CHARGE SCHEDULE

For calendar year 2018 and thereafter, the Annual Rental Fee shall be as set forth above.

The occupancy fee for attachments to conduit shall be based upon the applicable formula for cable attachments as provided for in Section 4901:1-3-04 of the Ohio Administrative Code and as may be modified or amended by the PUCO. As of the effective date of this tariff sheet, the occupancy fee for conduit shall be:

\$0.42 (per linear foot)

- **4. OTHER CHARGES.** (a) All charges for inspections, engineering and make ready work to permit Attachor's facilities to be attached to Owner's poles or placed in ducts and conduits and other work performed by Owner shall be determined in accordance with the regular and customary methods used by Owner in determining such costs.
- (b) These other charges may be updated by Owner periodically to reflect Owner's current costs.
- (c) To the extent applicable and as set forth in the General Terms and Conditions made a part hereof, Attachor shall also be obligated to pay any additional charges, including charges associated with unauthorized and non-compliant attachments as well as for delays in completion of any make ready required for other Attaching Entities.
- **5. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS.** All of the General Terms and Conditions of this Tariff are applicable to this Rental Charge Schedule and are hereby made a part hereof.
- **6. <u>PUCO JURISDICTION.</u>** This Rental Charge Schedule and the General Terms and Conditions are subject to Section 4901:1-3 of the Ohio Administrative Code and the jurisdiction of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio.

| Filed pursuant to the Er of the Public Utilities (| y on Rehearing in Case No. 19-0834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 mmission of Ohio. |
|--|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KR | TINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 1 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. AVAILABILITY. (a) Except as provided below, this tariff is applicable to any "Attaching Entity" as defined in Section 4901:1-3-01(A) of the Ohio Administrative Code (OAC) (hereinafter called "Attachor") who installs any facilities on poles, in ducts or conduits, and along rights-of-way owned by The Dayton Power and Light Company (hereinafter called "Owner" or "Company"). Attachors and/or entities with attachments subject to this Tariff shall be required to execute the "POLES, DUCTS AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT" agreement ("Tariff Agreement"), substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit A, hereto. As set forth in paragraphs 17 and 21 below, the Attachor has the separate obligation to determine whether any additional authorizations are necessary to obtain access on, in, or across real property not owned by Owner in order to install facilities on, in, or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way. Pursuant to OAC §4901:1-3-01 "Pole attachment" means any attachment by an attaching entity to a pole, duct, conduit, or right-of-way owned or controlled by a public utility.
- (b) This Tariff shall not apply with respect to an entity who has an effective written contract allowing the installation of facilities on, in or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits or rights-of-way on or after the time of the effective date of this Tariff either pursuant to a Joint Use Agreement, Joint Pole Agreement or other agreement irrespective of how captioned that provides for such installation under terms and conditions that are not intended by the parties thereto to be subject to the Tariff ("Non-Tariff Agreement").
- 2. <u>APPLICATION</u>. (a) Attachor shall make written application using the Company's current notification processes and system for permission to install or change attachments or equipment (e.g. power supply or amplifier) on or in any poles, ducts, and/or conduits of Owner, specifying the location of each pole, duct and conduit in question, the character of its proposed attachments and the amount and location of space desired as prescribed by Section 4901:1-3 of the Ohio Administrative Code. Owner shall notify Attachor in writing, consistent with the time period described in Section 4901:1-3-03(B) of the Ohio Administrative Code, whether or not it is willing to permit the use of such poles, ducts, conduits, and/or rights-of-way and, if so, under what conditions. Owner shall have the sole right to determine the availability of such poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way for Attachor's use; shall permit attachment to poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way on a nondiscriminatory basis; and the Owner will not unreasonably refuse to grant permission except for reasons of lack of capacity, safety, reliability or engineering standards, consistent with the National Electric Safety Code and Owner's engineering and construction standards. If permission is granted, Attachor shall have the right to occupy the space allotted by Owner solely in accordance with the conditions specified in said permit, the terms of this Tariff, and the Tariff Agreement, if any, between Owner and Attachor, it being fully understood by Attachor that the Owner may at any time authorize other parties to also place attachments on, in, or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits and conduits and/or right-of-way. No attachment shall be allowed until the completion of survey, engineering and applicable make

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Reheari of the Public Utilities Commission | ing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 n of Ohio. |
|--|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KRISTINA L | UND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| KKISTINA L | ond, i resident and emer Executive officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 2 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ready work. An Attachor's failure to request and receive the Owner's permission as described herein will subject each pole on which the Attachor has placed an unauthorized attachment to an unauthorized attachment fee.

- (b) Company shall evaluate requests for attachments, accept or deny applications, provide notices, including notices with respect to "overlashing", prepare both "complex makeready" and "simple make-ready" estimates and perform make-ready work consistent with the requirements, including exceptions, limitations and conditions, set forth in the Ohio Administrative Code, Section 4901:1-3-03. The terms "complex make-ready," "overlashing" and "simple make-ready" have the same meaning as in Ohio Administrative Code, Section 4901:1-3-01.
- **3. APPLICATION FEE/INSPECTION FEE.** An application fee (also referred to as an "inspection fee") will be charged for each pole attachment request. This fee will cover the Owner's costs of field inspection, preparing of records and maps, transportation and other associated overhead costs required to evaluate requested attachments. The amount of such fee shall be the amount of Owner's experienced costs in making the initial and follow-up field inspections and in preparing such documents, including all associated costs as determined by the Owner. Applicable only with respect to notices of overlashed fiber optic and coaxial cable, an inspection fee will be charged equal to the just and reasonable costs actually incurred by Owner to inspect the pole prior to the installation of the proposed overlash.
- **4. NON-COMPLIANCE.** When set forth in notices that Owner may issue pursuant to this Tariff, the Tariff Agreement, O.A.C. 4901:1:-3-03, or otherwise, Attachor shall have the obligation to perform work within a specified period with respect to: making its attachments, removing, relocating, or otherwise modifying its attachments to facilitate an attachment by another Attaching Entity, or removing and reattaching its attachments to a replacement pole. Attachor shall respond to all such notices and shall complete all requested work within the time set forth in Owner's notice. If, after notice, Attachor does not comply with and is not contesting any obligation to perform work, Owner shall have the right to perform such work and charge Attachor for Owner's cost.
- **5. CONDITIONS OF ATTACHMENT.** All attachments are to be placed on, in, or along Owner's poles, ducts, conduits, and rights-of-way as instructed by and in a manner satisfactory to Owner so as not to interfere with the present or any future use in the electric space which Owner may desire to make of said poles, duct, conduits, and rights-of-way or the wires attached thereto or therein. All attachments shall be installed and at all times maintained by Attachor so as to comply with the requirements of the Owner's engineering and construction standards, National Electrical Safety Code (NESC) and any other applicable regulations or codes promulgated by any state, local or other governmental authority having jurisdiction thereover, as such standards, codes or regulations may be amended from time to time. The Attachor shall effectively ground its facilities

| regulations may be amended fro | om time to time. The Attachor shall effectively ground its facilities |
|---|---|
| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rehe of the Public Utilities Commiss | earing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 sion of Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KRISTINA | LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 3 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

to Owner's multi-grounded neutral, per NESC requirement. Any guying required by reason of the attachments of Attachor either in Attachor's or Owner's judgment shall be installed, maintained and provided at the expense of Attachor and to the satisfaction of Owner and shall be in place prior to the installation of Attachor's messenger wire and/or cable. In no event shall Attachor use any of Owner's anchors without first securing Owner's approval.

- 6. **REARRANGEMENT.** If Attachor's desired attachments can be accommodated on existing poles, ducts, and conduits of Owner by rearranging the facilities of Owner and other Attachors thereon, Owner shall notify Attachor and all other existing Attaching Entities of the necessary rearrangements that need to be made. Owner's notice to the Attachor shall include the name and contact information of other existing Attaching Entities whose facilities need to be rearranged. The existing Attaching Entities, including any other utility subject to O.A.C. 4901:1-3, shall rearrange and/or modify their attachment on or before the completion date established by Owner in its notice issued pursuant to O.A.C. 4901:1-3-03. The requesting Attachor shall be obligated to pay Owner for any costs incurred by Owner for such rearrangements and shall be financially obligated with respect to any charges imposed by the other Attaching Entity's for their costs to rearrange, except that the requesting Attachor will pay proportional to its use with any existing Attaching Entity or Attaching Entities that adds to or modifies its attachment after receiving notice of the rearrangement. A subsequent Attaching Entity who attaches after the rearranging shall share proportionately in the rearranging costs if the rearrangement made possible its attachment. The requesting Attachor shall not be obligated to pay Owner or existing Attachors for rearrangement costs incurred to rectify an existing condition or issue, which shall be charged instead to either: (a) the last attachor(s) or overlasher(s) who cause the condition or issue; or (b) if records are inadequate to determine who caused the condition or issue, then all attachor(s) and overlasher(s) and the public utility shall pay to rectify the existing condition proportional to their use. If any additional guying is required by reason of the attachments of the Attachor, then Attachor shall reimburse Owner for the total costs of such work. If guying is required in the communication zone, Attachor shall be responsible for installation at its own expense. Attachor shall have the responsibility to seek agreement with other Attaching Entities with respect to the financial obligations relating to any such rearrangements. Outside of providing the standard proposal notifications, Owner undertakes no obligation and shall not be responsible for coordinating the rearrangement of the existing Attaching Entities attachments.
- 7. REPLACEMENT FACILITIES. (a) In any case where Owner plans to install a new pole, duct, or conduit as a replacement of an existing pole, duct, or conduit, Owner shall notify all Attaching Entities with attachments on or in the existing pole, duct, or conduit of such plans. Attaching Entities have 15 days from such notification by Owner to indicate their intent to attach to or in the new pole, duct, or conduit and shall further indicate whether the existing specifications for their facilities remain the same or if there are changed requirements. A failure to provide a response shall be treated as if the Attaching Entity had indicated intent to attach to the new pole, duct, or conduit with no change in existing specifications.

| | Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 ities Commission of Ohio. |
|--|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| Issued by | |
| KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 4 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- (b) In any case where Owner installs a new pole as a replacement of an existing pole because of the necessity of providing adequate space or strength to accommodate the attachments of Attachor, either at the request of Attachor or to comply with the above standards, codes and regulations, the Attachor shall pay Owner's make-ready cost of this replacement, except that the requesting Attachor will pay proportional to its use with any existing Attaching Entity or Attaching Entities that adds to or modifies its attachment after receiving notice of the pole replacement. A subsequent Attaching Entity who attaches after the pole replacement shall share proportionately in the replacement costs if the replacement made possible its attachment. Such cost shall be the total estimated cost of the new pole, including material, labor, and applicable overheads, plus the cost of transferring existing electric facilities to the new pole, plus the cost of removal of the existing pole and any other incremental costs required to provide for the attachments including any applicable taxes and fees the Owner may be required to pay because of this change in plant, minus salvage value of any facilities removed. The requesting Attachor shall not be obligated to pay Owner or existing Attachors for pole replacement costs incurred to rectify an existing condition or issue, which shall be charged instead to either: (a) the last attachor(s) or overlasher(s) who cause the condition or issue; or (b) if records are inadequate to determine who caused the condition or issue, then all attachor(s) and overlasher(s) and the public utility shall pay to rectify the existing condition proportional to their use.
- (c) Attachor shall also pay to the Owner and shall be financially responsible to any existing Attaching Entities for the cost of removing all existing attachments from the existing pole and re-establishing the same or like attachments on the newly installed pole. Owner's notice to the Attachor shall include the name and contact information of other existing Attaching Entities whose facilities need to be transferred.
- (d) Where Owner is initiating the installation of a new pole, either as a replacement of an existing pole or as an initial installation and a new or modified attachment is proposed by an Attachor which, in the opinion of Owner, makes it necessary to install a new pole taller or stronger than would be needed but for the Attachor's new or modified attachments, the added total costs incurred by Owner due to such extra height and/or strength shall be paid by Attachor. Such added total costs shall be the difference between the total cost of installing the new pole required to accommodate Attachor's new or modified attachment and the current total cost that would have been incurred in the absence of Attachor's new or modified attachment.
- (e) Any new pole installed pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall be the property of Owner regardless of any payments by Attachor towards its cost, and Attachor shall acquire no right of ownership in, or title to, such pole (or with respect to any other pole subject to this Tariff).

| • | Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 ilities Commission of Ohio. |
|--------|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| | KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 5 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- (f) Attachor shall transfer its facilities by the date set for completion by Owner in Owner's notice to Attachor that the Owner has replaced a pole on which Attachor has attachments so the Owner may remove the old pole. Should the Attachor fail to transfer the facilities as of such completion date, the Attachor shall be subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4.
- (g) The provisions of 7(b) through 7(f) shall be applied with respect to replacement ducts and conduits with appropriate modifications to reflect the differences in work and costs to replace ducts and conduits relative to replacement poles.
- **8.** MULTIPLE APPLICANTS. When Owner receives applications from more than one applicant for attachment space on or in any particular pole, duct or conduit and because of such multi-attachments either the pole, duct or conduit must be replaced or the facilities thereon must be rearranged to provide additional space for said attachments, Owner will prorate the additional total costs resulting from the pole, duct or conduit replacement or rearrangement in a fair and reasonable way to the extent practicable between Attachor and the other attachment applicant(s). Such prorated total costs shall include the common engineering, material and other expenses which result to Owner from the multiple attachments. Owner's proration of total costs shall be determinative as to all parties subject to Attaching Entities' rights to dispute a make ready determination.
- 9. <u>OWNER'S RIGHT OF INSPECTION</u>. Owner reserves the right to inspect each new installation of Attachor on its poles, ducts and conduits. Owner reserves the right to make periodic inspections, as conditions may warrant, and Attachor shall reimburse Owner for the total costs of one post-installation inspection. Owner's right to make such inspections and any inspection made pursuant to such right shall not relieve Attachor of any other responsibility, obligation or liability assumed under this Tariff or under law.
- **10. ATTACHMENT AUDIT.** Owner shall provide Attachor with no less than 180 days advance written notice of its intention to conduct an attachment inventory audit and shall provide to Attachor a reasonable opportunity to participate in the planning and implementation of the inventory audit.
- 11. <u>UNAUTHORIZED ATTACHMENT</u>. If the Owner discovers any equipment or facilities of an Attachor on its poles, ducts and/or conduits which have not been properly applied for or paid for under the terms set forth herein or pursuant to some other authorization, then Owner may take any or all of the following actions as applicable:

| uny or | an of the following detroits as approache. |
|--------|--|
| • | Assess an unauthorized attachment fee of \$500 per pole for Attachors without a contract (i.e., when there is no pole attachment agreement between the parties); |
| | oursuant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. |
| Issued | |
| | Issued by |
| | KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 6 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

Assess an unauthorized attachment fee of five times the current annual rental fee per pole
if: 1) the Attachor has not submitted an Application, 2) the Attachor has not received an
authorization to attach and the violation is self-reported or discovered through a joint
inspection, or 3) the unauthorized attachment is identified by Owner or Owner's
contractor during daily job responsibilities or during a pole examination for a new
attachment request.

Owner shall provide specific notice of violation (including pole number and location) before seeking relief against an Attachor ("Notice of Unauthorized Attachment").

There is a mutual obligation of Owner and Attachors to correct immediately violations that pose imminent danger to life or property. If a party corrects another party's violation, the party responsible for the violation must reimburse the correcting party for the actual cost of corrections.

12.PAYMENTS. All payments due from Attachor shall be invoiced by Owner. Payment shall be made by Attachor within thirty (30) days from the date of the invoice, except for payments for make ready work. Payment for a make ready work estimate shall be made at any time, unless the Owner withdraws the estimate. The Attachor may submit a written dispute or request for additional information regarding the scope of make-ready work or allocation of costs of the mark-ready work. Owner may, but is not required to, withdraw an outstanding estimate of charges to perform make-ready work beginning 14 days after the estimate is presented.

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rehearing of the Public Utilities Commission | g in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 of Ohio. |
|---|--|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KRISTINA LUI | ND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 6 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

13. OWNER'S NOTIFICATION. (a) Whenever Owner notifies Attachor any time that the attachments of Attachor interfere with the maintenance and operation of equipment of Owner or other Attaching Entities, create a safety violation or constitute a hazard to the service rendered by Owner or other Attaching Entities, or fail to comply with standards, codes or regulations hereinafter mentioned, Attachor shall within ten (10) days after the date of such notice remove, rearrange or change its attachments as directed by Owner at Attachor's expense. Failure to comply shall result in Attachor being subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4. In any emergency as deemed by Owner, Owner reserves the right to remove and/or relocate the attachments and/or facilities of Attachor at any time at Attachor's expense without notice and no liability therefore shall be incurred by Owner because of such action, and Attachor shall be liable to Owner for Owner's total costs in removing and/or relocating Attachor's attachments and/or facilities and Attachor shall be deemed to have indemnified and held Owner harmless for such action pursuant to Section 18. Whenever Owner notifies Attachor that the attachments of Attachor interfere with routine maintenance, Attachor shall within thirty (30) days after the date of such notice remove, rearrange or change its attachments as directed by Owner.

- (b) Owner reserves the right, without liability to Attachor or Attachor's customers, on (sixty) 60 day notice to Attachor to discontinue the use of, remove or change the location of any or all of its poles or attachments regardless of any occupancy of Owner's poles, ducts, and conduits by Attachor and Attachor shall, at its sole cost and within sixty (60) days after written notice by Owner, make such changes in, removal or transfer of its attachments as shall be required by such action of Owner. Failure to comply shall result in Attachor being subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4.
- 14. ABANDONMENT BY ATTACHOR. Attachor may at any time abandon the use of Owner's pole, duct, conduit, or right-of-way hereunder by giving written notice thereof to Owner and then removing therefrom all of its attachments. Attachor shall remove all of its attachments within 60 days after providing such notice to Owner. Failure to comply shall result in Attachor being subject to the Non-Compliance conditions set forth in Section 4.
- 15. ATTACHOR'S EQUIPMENT. If Attachor should desire to mount equipment outside of the communication zone (power supplies, amplifiers, etc.) on Owner's poles a written application shall be submitted for permission to install/mount equipment on Owner's Poles. The Annual Rental fee for authorized equipment installation that is in compliance with the authorization shall be the Annual Rental Fee. Any electric power service provided by Owner for power supplies, amplifiers or other equipment of Attachor shall be paid for by Attachor as per Owner's applicable electric tariff.

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | | |
|--|--|--|
| Issued | Effective | |
| | Issued by | |
| KRISTINA L | UND, President and Chief Executive Officer | |
| | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 7 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

16. COMPUTATION AND PAYMENT OF MAKE READY COSTS. In computing the amounts becoming due pursuant to these General Terms and Conditions for make ready costs (other than the Annual Rental Fee), the fees and charges shall be the actual costs incurred by the Company to make the facilities ready for Attachor's proposed attachment. Make ready costs pursuant to these General Terms and Conditions shall include not only all labor and material costs and expenses, but also overheads and indirect costs required including any applicable taxes, permit fees, and other charges the Owner is required to incur or pay to make the facilities ready for Attachor's proposed attachments.

<u>17. THIRD PARTY CLAIMS.</u> In granting Attachor the right to attach to Owner's poles, ducts, and conduits or other facilities as provided herein, Owner makes no representation as to what rights may exist in others regarding the land on which Owner's poles and other facilities are located. Attachor shall have full responsibility for meeting the title claims or requirements of any other parties relating to the placement of its facilities upon, under, or above said land, and Attachor shall hold harmless Owner against any such claims.

18. RELEASE AND INDEMNIFICATION. (a) As further consideration to Owner for its granting Attachor permission to use Owner's facilities as herein provided, Attachor hereby releases Owner from any and all liability for loss of or damage to its attachments subject to this Tariff, and for any interruption to or failure of any service rendered by Attachor in which such attachments are used. Under no circumstance, shall Owner be responsible to Attachor, either directly or through claims raised against Attachor by Attachor's employees, contractors, or customers, for incidental, indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of profits or revenues, interruption of customer service or interference with business operations.

(b) Attachor further shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Owner from and against any and all actions or causes of action, claims, demands, liabilities, loss, damage or expense of whatsoever kind and nature ("Claims"), including Claims of Attachor's employees, contractors, and customers whether raised directly against Owner or raised indirectly against Owner through Attachor, and including incidental, indirect, punitive, special or consequential damages, including, but not limited to, loss of profits or revenues, interruption of customer service or interference with business operations, and further including attorneys' fees arising from such action, by reason of bodily injury, including death, to any person or persons, or by reason of damage to or destruction of any property, including the loss of use thereof, including property of Owner,

| destruction of any property, including the loss of use thereof, including property of Owner, | |
|--|--|
| | |
| Filed pursuant to Entry | on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 |
| of the Public Utilities | Commission of Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KF | RISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 8 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

arising out of or in any manner connected with the facilities of Attachor to be installed hereunder, including any costs which Owner may sustain or incur in the investigation, settlement or litigation of any such claims, including any legal action instituted to enforce the obligation of this agreement of indemnity, whether or not due in whole or in part to any act, omission, or negligence of Owner, or any of its representatives or employees, subject, however, to the provisions of Section 2305.31 of the Revised Code of Ohio (O.R.C.), where applicable, provided, further, however, that nothing herein shall require indemnification as to any claims against Owner arising under the Ohio Worker's Compensation Law with respect to Owner's employees and contractors. This indemnity obligation does apply, however, to claims against Owner by Attachor's employees, contractors and customers. To the extent that Attachor might otherwise be immune from indemnifying Owner under the applicable workers compensation law, Attachor hereby expressly waives this immunity. For claims arising under Ohio law, this waiver applies to Section 35, Article II of the Ohio Constitution and O.R.C. Section 4123.74. Moreover, Attachor expressly waives any subrogation rights, including those provide under O.R.C. Section 4123.93, it may have arising from any claim brought by its employees against Owner for injuries allegedly sustained while involved in pole attachment activities.

(c) Approval of the above tariff language by the PUCO does not constitute a determination by the Commission that the limitation of liability imposed by the Company should be upheld in a court of law. Approval by the Commission merely recognizes that since it is a court's responsibility to adjudicate negligence and consequent damage claims, it is also the court's responsibility to determine the validity of the exculpatory clause.

19. PUBLIC LIABILITY INSURANCE. Attachor shall obtain and maintain at all times during the joint use of poles hereunder policies of insurance as follows:

- (a) Public Liability Insurance for itself in an amount not less than \$1,000,000.00 for any one person and, subject to the same limit for any one person, in an amount not less than \$1,000,000.00 for any one occurrence.
- (b) Property Damage Liability Insurance for itself in an amount not less than \$1,000,000.00.
- (c) Contractual Liability Insurance with limits as provided in (a) and (b) above to

| | cover the liability assumed by Attachor under the agreement of indemnity herein above set forth. |
|---|---|
| Attachor shall furnish to Owner a certificate, from an insurance carrier acceptable to Owner, stating that policies of insurance have been issued by it to Attachor providing for the insurance | |
| | uant to Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 blic Utilities Commission of Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| | KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 3 Cancels Original Sheet No. 3 Page 9 of 10

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

listed above and stating that such policies are in force. Such certificate shall state that the insurance carrier will endeavor to give Owner at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice of any cancellation of or material change in such policies. The certificate shall also quote in full the agreement of indemnity set forth above as evidence of the type of contractual liability coverage furnished. If such certificate recites that it is subject to any exceptions contained in the policy or policies of insurance, such exceptions shall be stated in full in said certificate. Owner may, in its discretion, require that before the Attachor starts work, Attachor must obtain policies of insurance which are not subject to any exceptions which Owner finds objectionable.

20. PERFORMANCE BOND. Attachor shall furnish a performance bond in the amount of Ten Thousand Dollars (\$10,000.00) or lesser or greater amount as Owner from time to time may require to guarantee the performance of the obligations assumed by Attachor under the terms of this Tariff not otherwise covered by the insurance required by Section 19. Such bond shall be identical in terms to the form of bond marked Exhibit B, attached hereto and made a part hereof.

21 PERMITS. EASEMENTS. AND RIGHTS-OF-WAY. Attachor, at its expense, shall be solely responsible for determining the extent to which it is necessary to secure and shall secure any additional easement, right-of-way, franchise, other right, license or permit from any governmental body, authority or any other landowner, entity, or person that may be required for the construction, maintenance or continued siting of Attachor's attachments and related equipment and facilities. Owner does not provide or guarantee that Attachor will be able to obtain any necessary easements, right-of-way or franchises, other right, license or permit for the construction and maintenance of such attachments. Attachor hereby agrees to indemnify and save harmless the Owner from any and all claims, including the expenses incurred by the Owner to defend itself against such claims, resulting from or arising out of the failure of Attachor to secure any necessary easement, right-ofway, franchise, other right, license or permit for the construction, maintenance or continued sitting of such attachment on the Owner's pole or along Owner's pole line or occupancy in the Owner's duct or conduit.

22. WORK OF ONE PARTY PERFORMED BY THE OTHER. In case one party hereto is obligated hereunder to perform certain work at its own expense and it is mutually agreed between the parties hereto that it is desirable for the other party to do said work, then said other party shall promptly do the work at the sole expense of the party originally obligated to perform the same and at a price agreed to by the parties at the time.

| 23 ADDITIONAL TERMINATION RIGHTS. If Attachor fails to comply with any of the provisions of this Tariff or defaults in the performance of any of its obligations under this Tariff and fails to correct such default or non-compliance within 60 days of Owner's notification, which may be in writing or via the electronic system used by Owner to communicate with Attachors, Owner | |
|--|--|
| Filed pursuant to Entry on R of the Public Utilities Com | Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 mission of Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective Issued by |
| KRISTI | INA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |

THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY

MacGregor Park 1065

Woodman Drive

Dayton, Ohio 45432

Page 10 of

may, at its option, forthwith remove Attachor's facility from Owner's pole, duct and conduit and no liability shall be incurred by Owner because of such action and Attachor shall indemnify and hold

may, at its option, forthwith remove Attachor's facility from Owner's pole, duct and conduit and no liability shall be incurred by Owner because of such action and Attachor shall indemnify and hold Owner harmless for such action pursuant to Section 18. In addition, Attachor shall be liable to Owner for Owner's total costs in removing Attachor's attachments and/or facilities.

24. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither Owner nor Attachor shall be deemed to be in breach of this Tariff by reason of failure to perform any of its obligations hereunder if, while and to the extent that such failure is due to strikes, boycotts, labor disputes, embargoes, shortages of materials, acts of God, acts of the public enemy, acts of governmental authority, weather conditions, floods, riots, rebellion, sabotage, or any other circumstances for which it is not responsible and which are not reasonably within its control.

25. DELAYED PAYMENT CHARGE. Payment of the total amount due must be received by the Company or an authorized agent by the due date shown on the bill. If Attachor does not pay the total amount due to the Company by the due date shown, an additional amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) per month of the total unpaid balance shall also become due and payable.

26. RETURNED CHECK CHARGE. A charge of the actual banking fee amount for returned check shall be added to the Attachor's account each time a check is returned by the financial institution.

27. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS MAY BE AMENDED. The Company reserves to itself the right with the approval of The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, to modify, alter, amend, or add new provisions into these General Terms and Conditions as experience and conditions may suggest, or as it deems necessary in the conduct of its business.

| Filed pursuant to Entry on Re of the Public Utilities Comm | hearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26,2022 ission of Ohio. |
|--|---|
| Issued | Effective |
| | Issued by |
| KRISTIN | NA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer |
| | |
| | |
| | |

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 1 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

POLES, DUCTS AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT AGREEMENT

| THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into thisday ofby and between together with its affiliates and subsidiaries, |
|---|
| (Hereinafter referred to as "ATTACHOR") and THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY, an Ohio Corporation, 1065 Woodman Drive, Dayton, Ohio 45432, (hereinafter referred to as "OWNER"); and, |
| WHEREAS Attachor desires to make attachments on or in Owner's poles, ducts and conduits; and |
| WHEREAS, Owner is willing to permit, to the extent it may lawfully do so, the use of its poles, ducts and conduits by Attachor, where, in Owner's judgment, such use will not interfere with its own service requirements, including considerations of economy and safety; |
| NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, terms and conditions herein, the parties hereto agree as follows: |
| 1. OWNER'S POLE ATTACHMENT TARIFF: The parties agree to comply with the terms and conditions in the Owner's Pole Attachment Tariff, PUCO No. 2 (hereinafter referred to as "Owner's Tariff") on file with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio (hereinafter referred to as "Commission"), which is hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereto. |
| 2. <u>APPLICATION PROCESS AND NOTICES:</u> Owner currently uses a web-based electronic notice and application process known as Spacially-enabled Permitting and Notification System "SPANS". Attachor agrees to utilize SPANS to support and manage all collaborative communication associated with joint use and attachment activity on Owner's poles. Owner reserves the right to replace or modify the SPANS system at any time in which case, Attachor's obligations hereunder shall be with respect to the modified or replacement system. |
| 3. PERMIT FROM OWNER: Before making any attachment to any of Owner's poles or making use of any duct or conduit used by Owner, or making modifications or additions to an existing attachment or use, Attachor shall make written application for permission to install attachments on any pole of Owner or make use of any duct or conduit of Owner, subject to the terms and conditions of the Owner's Pole Attachment Tariff, General Terms and Conditions, PUCO No. 2, Original Sheet No. 3. 15 days' notice must be given to the Owner prior to the planned overlashing of any equipment or facility. Overlashing of any equipment or facility other than fiber optic or coaxial cable must be specifically approved prior to commencing any construction activities. |
| Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. |
| Issued Effective |

Issued by KRISTINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 2 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

- 4. **FEE and CHARGES:** Attachor shall pay all fees, rental charges, or other amounts for which payments are required as set forth in Owner's Tariff.
- 5. <u>DUCTS and CONDUIT CHARGES:</u> Prior to any use of Owner's ducts or conduits, the parties hereto shall execute Attachment 1, which shall specify rates, terms and Conditions, including any Special Conditions for such use on a project by project basis
- 6. **TERM:** This Agreement shall continue in effect from the date this Agreement is executed until terminated by either party upon written notice to the other party at least ninety (90) days in advance of the desired termination date. Upon receipt of such notice from Owner, or upon the giving of such notice, Attachor shall proceed to cause its attachments to be removed from Owner's poles without undue delay and shall complete such removal prior to the specified termination date.
- 7. **SEVERABILITY:** If any provision of this Agreement or of Owner's Tariff incorporated by reference and made a part hereof, is held to be unenforceable or invalid, the remainder of the Agreement shall not be affected thereby.
- 8. <u>SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS:</u> This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto, their respective successors and/or assigns, but Attachor shall not transfer or assign any of the rights hereby granted without written consent of Owner. Notwithstanding the foregoing, consent shall not be required for (a) an assignment by either Party to a successor in interest resulting from an organizational restructuring, corporate conversion, consolidation, merger or other change of control of the assigning Party; or (b) an assignment by either Party to a person, corporation or other entity acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of such Party; or (c) an assignment by either Party to an entity directly or indirectly owning or controlling, owned or controlled by, or under common ownership or control with such Party (an "Affiliate"), in each case under (a), (b), and (c), however, notice shall be given of such assignment within thirty (30) days after the effective date of such assignment.

| Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | | | | |
|---|---|--|--|--|
| Issued KRIST | Effective Issued by INA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | | | |

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 3 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the day and year first above written.

| | OWNER: |
|---|--|
| | THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | ATTACHOD. |
| | ATTACHOR: |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Filed nursuant to the Entry on Rehearin | g in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 |
| of the Public Utilities Commission of C | Ohio. |
| Issued | Effective |
| KRISTINA LUND | Issued by , President and Chief Executive Officer |

First Revised Sheet No. 4 Cancels Original Sheet No. 4 Page 4 of 4

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT A

ATTACHMENT 1

RATES, TERMS and SPECIAL CONDITIONS WITH RESPECT TO USE OF DUCTS AND CONDUITS

| | [To be separately executed project-by-project] | |
|----------------------------|---|--|
| | OWNER: | |
| | THE DAYTON POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY | |
| | ATTACHOR: | |
| | y on Rehearing in Case No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 | |
| of the Public Utilities Co | mmission of Unio. | |
| Issued | Effective | |
| KBIS | Issued by TINA LUND, President and Chief Executive Officer | |

First Revised Sheet No. 5 Cancels Original Sheet No. 5 Page 1 of 1

P.U.C.O. No. 2

POLES, DUCTS, AND CONDUITS ATTACHMENT TARIFF

EXHIBIT B

BOND OF PERFORMANCE

| KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESEN | T, That we , as | |
|---|---|--|
| Principal, and, of | _a corporation duly organized under the laws | |
| of the State of, as Surety, are held and | I firmly bound unto THE DAYTON POWER | |
| AND LIGHT COMPANY (hereinafter called the | Obligee), in the sum of, for | |
| the payment of which sum well and truly to be ma | | |
| bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators | s, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, | |
| firmly by these presents, | | |
| | | |
| Sealed with our seals, signed and dated thi | isday of, 20 . | |
| THE CONDITION of the above obligation | n is such that the said Principal has entered into | |
| a contract with said Obligee dated | | |
| accordance with the terms and conditions of said c | contract, which is hereby referred to and made a | |
| part hereof as it is fully set forth herein; | | |
| | | |
| | Principal shall well and truly keep, do and | |
| perform each and every, all and singular, the matter | | |
| specified in the manner in said contract specified, | | |
| the above named Obligee, all loss and damage whi | | |
| failure or default on the part of said Principal so to | do, then this obligation shall be null and void, | |
| otherwise shall remain in full force and effect. | | |
| This obligation may be canceled by the Su (90) days from the receipt by the Obligee of certificancellation. | arety, such cancellation to be effective ninety ed or registered mail notice of such | |
| • | | |
| Attest: | (D: : 1) | |
| | (Principal) | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| (Surety) | · | |
| (Surety) | | |
| | | |
| | | |
| Filed pursuant to the Entry on Rehearing in Case N of the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio. | No. 190834-AU-ORD dated January 26, 2022 | |
| Issued | Effective | |
| Issued Effective Issued by | | |
| | | |
| KRISTINA LUND, President | and Chief Executive Officer | |

This foregoing document was electronically filed with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio Docketing Information System on

7/14/2022 3:50:23 PM

in

Case No(s). 22-0080-EL-ATA

Summary: Amended Application of The Dayton Power and Light Company d/b/a AES Ohio for Approval to Establish a New Pole Attachment Tariff electronically filed by Mr. Hani S. Jaber on behalf of The Dayton Power and Light Company d/b/a AES Ohio